MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST NR Eligible: yes
DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY FORM no_

/" Property Name: _Mirytle Hill Inventory Number:  CARR--924

Address: 1340 Bruceville Road City: _Bruceville Zip Code: 21757

County:  Carroll USGS Topographic Map: Union Bridge

Owner: _ Patricia Phares Is the property being evaluated a district? yes

Tax Parcel Number: 168 Tax Map Number: 35 Tax Account ID Number: _ 10-00912

Project: _ MD 194, Bridge No. 6035 over Big Pipe Creek Agency: MD SHA

Site visit by MHT staff X no yes Name: Date:

Is the property is located within a historic district? X _ves no

If the property is within a district ‘ District Inventory Number: CARR-923

NR-listed district yes Eligible district yes  Name of District: _Bruceville Historic District

Preparer's Recommendation: Contributing resource X yes no  Non-contributing but eligible in another context yes

If the property is not within a district (or the property is a district) Preparer’s Recommendation:  Eligible ves no

Criteria: X A B XC D Considerations: A B C D E F G____ None

#~ Documentation on the property/district is presented in: Compliance Files

Description of Property and Eligibility Determination: {Use continuation sheet if hecessary and attach map and photo)

Mrytle Hill, built by Normand (a.k.a. Norman, Normond) Bruce, the founder of Bruceville, is significant for its architectural
components--the large stone and frame house, the stone meathouse, and the remains of the large single span stone arch bridge,
no longer extant, which connected it, within the town of Bruceville, on the south side of Big Pipe Creek, with Good Intent on
the north side. It is most significant for its association with the original settlers and founders of Bruceville, and the neighboring
community of Keymar, namely the Key and the Bruce families.

It is a component of the Bruceville Historic District, which is located in Middleburg district, about one-half mile north of the
junction of the Western Maryland and Frederick and Pennsylvania Line Railroads. Bruce laid out the town and named it for
himself in the eighteenth century. The earliest accounts of the history of Normand are that he emigrated from Scotland, settling
on Pipe Creek. In 1763 the state of Maryland granted to Bruce and Edward Diggs 5,301 acres, extending from Keysville along
Big Pipe Creek (and north of the area that became Bruceville). The whole region was called "Bedford” at the time.

At the same time the land south of the creek belonged to John Ross Key. Normand Bruce desired the Key property for the
purpose of erecting a mill on Big Pipe Creek, thus he entered into negations with Key, which resulted in an exchange of their
estates. In 1764 Normand Bruce married Susanne Key, daughter of a Philip Key of St. Mary’s County, the first settler of that
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name in America. Philip Key had six children the third of which was the grandfather of Francis Scott Key. Susanna received
from her father by will 1,400 acres of land, being one-half of “Terra Rubra”. Bruce continued to add to the first grant of 5,301
acres, ultimately acquiring 14,089 acres. This contained several villages, about five flour and grist mills, several factories, shops
of various kinds, two railroads passing through this land, with stations and warehouses. He was the sheriff of Frederick County,
an officer in the Revolutionary War, one of the first Justices of the Peace, and Justice of the Levy Court in 1803.

Normand Bruce built Mrytle Hill for himself in the late 18th century as the centerpiece of a considerable estate which included at
least one mill, housing and many ancilliary structures. The 1798 Particular Assisment Lists for Baltimore and Carroll Counties
of 1798 lists, for Upton Bruce, 1067 acres, two dwelling houses, and a stone mill house. This was a re-assessment of the first
one, done for Normand Bruce. In the land transaction of 1820 in which it is conveyed by Bruce's daughter, it was noted as
including a gristmill, sawmill, outhouses, improvements, water courses, etc. In a transaction of 1833 it was further noted as
containing a miller's house, cooper's house and shop, stabling, and water courses, plus a tavern, along with the gristmill and
sawmill. In sum, it continued to be important economically throughout the 19th century.

Prepared by: Rita M. Suffhess Date Prepared: 12/05/2002
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4 DESCRIPTION
LN CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED __UNALTERED XX_ORIGINAL SITE
X 3eG000 —_RUINS KXALTERED —MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPQSED ‘

OESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

"Myrtle Hill" is located in Bruceville, Maryland, bteing the last
house on the section of the Bruceville Road that is east of MAd.

Route 194.

Built into the side of a hill, the house is two and one-half storiles
with a full basement. The bank form of the house allows ground
level entrances to the basement on the front, to the first floor
on the inner side of the ell, and on the second floor in the bacxz
of the house. The house is ell-shaped and is cons*ructed of

wood frame with clapboards and brick nogging infill on a stone
foundation .~ The rear of the main section of the hcuse has a

wide rough siding with a bead 2dge, but this has been replaced or
rost of the other sides of the house. A double-tiered porch
exists on the main facade as well as on the ell's inner side whers
the second tier of the vorch continues around the dack of the
house at ground level.

The gable roof has a variation in that on the side of the house
‘ - from which the ell extends, the roof is hipsed, theredy giving
7™ . . the house an unbalanced appearance from the front. A chimney .
- stack rises from the ridge of the ell roof where the ell meets '
the main section. This stack serves back-:io-back Zireplaces on

the first floor. Another chimney stack is located further back

in the ell for the kiichen firenlace. : T

The main section of the house is three by two bayc. The main
cacade has a central doorway and 6/6 sash windows in the other
two bays of the firgt floor and the three bays on the second
floor. The rable end side of this section has twe windows on
the main floor and one on the second floor, with a small window
in the gable. The oppocite side has a balanced fenestration alcng
the main section and the ell. fhe windows have wocod sills and
blinds with beveled panels. :‘hese beveled panels are repeated
in the front porch ornamentaticn helow the railing balusters.
The basement facade is masked by lattice wcrk along the ground
level of the porch, It has a central doorway and 2 window to ezch
_side. In the front section of the basement is a large hearth and
a hand water nump with a troush. The back of the basement has an
arched retaining wall for the kitchen fireplace. This arch
encloses a niche with stone shelving. Also in the basement is
a drainage system for water that flows from a spring below the
house. This system has trouchs that run along the inner edges
of the walls, carrying the water towards the front of the house
and then out-the side. ‘ : - g
The far rear section of the ell is built of stone and sets into j)
the bank. There were some boulders in the bank in the path of taxe
wall which could not be moved, so the wall was just built over
them and they protrude into the room. This section was crobably

' CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF = NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The archjtecture of "Mrytle Hill" is representative of other
farmhouses in Carroll County. The floor pPlan with the two rooms
flanking a central passage in the main section and an ell service
wing was the most popular arrangement of space in the area. This
Plan allowed for a symmetrical facade, although "Mrytle Hill"
varies in the use of a three bay facade instead of the later,
more commonly found five bay. The bank form of the house was =
practical development found in barn architecture in the area

as well as in domestic forms. Also unique in this farmhouse is
the partially hipped roof and the basement drainage system. ZLocal
tradition considers the style of the house and the design of the
pPorches as a West Indies influence, which Normand Bruce acquired
during a trip there.

In a newspaver articé&, "History of Bruceville” by E.H. Sharetts
printed in the "Carroll Record," the following data is reported
concerning Normand Bruce and Bruceville: "The town was laid out
by Norman Bruce and named Bruceville about the eighteenth century.
The earliest accounts of Norman Bruce are that he emigrated from
Scotland about the year 1762 and settled on Pipe Creek. 1In 1763
the state of Maryland granted to the above named Bruce and Edward
Diggs five thousand three hundred and one acres of land, extending
from Keysville along Big Pipe Creek north of Bruceville--the whole
region was called 'Bedford'....the land south of the creek belonged
to John Ross Key. Norman Bruce desiring the Key property for the
purpose of erecting a mill on the Big Pipe Creek, entered into
negotiations with Key, which resulted in an exchange of their
estates. Norman Bruce married in 1764, Susamna Key, daughter of
Phillip Key, of St. Mary's County,....Susanna received from her
father by will, fourteen hundred acres of land, being one half

of 'Terra Rubra.' Bruce took up large grants in Frederick County,
(now Carrolil) ang became a large landholder, having in possession..
. .fourteen thousand eighty-nine and One-quarter acres. He was
sheriff in Frederick County, an officer in the Revolution, one of
the first Justices of the Peace, who formed the court of Frederick
County, of the new government in 1777, and Justice of the Levy
Court in 1803. Norman Bruce died April 25, 1811."
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.. excerpts from the Deed "race-- NYRV'LE FILL

1 ) . .
"ten acres of land more or less upon which is erected a mill,
sawe mill, bone mill and Adwellines."

2Carroll County Wills 9/11/1860  1ill Property “parcel
in town of Bruceville, adjoining land:z of Upton Scott, George Mering,
and Nicholas Koontz."

3"lot in and adjoining Bruceville cenveyed to Nathen Hendricks by
William P. Farquhar and Hugh Shaw avr¢ others. Together with the
grist mill and saw mill and all apmirlances and machinery and pri-
vileges thereunto helon<ing or apncirtaining together with the Tavern
House and lots in said Nathen lendrick's Possession on the thirteenth
day of September in the year eighteon hundred and twenty six together
with the miller's house, coopar's houce and shon, and stabling and
all the improvements and anmirtence:: helongineg to sald tract or
parcel of land and lots owned, held or posscessed by the said Nathan
Hendricks and Daniel Haine: 4o .John !icKaleb by deed of mortgage
bearing date the day and year iact nlforesaid and recorded in Liber
JS 26/ Folio 122"

b oyl / . .
"containing 2% acres and 32 rerches more or less with all and siraular
the grist mill and swa mill, dwelline house:s, out houses, and other

i improvements, waters, water courses, richts..."
5"Tha‘t tract of land lying and beins on Big PPipe Creek in County
aforesaid whereon are a mill and dweiling houses purchased by the
said Jessee Cloud of Unton Bruce an< ilizabeth Key Scott."
6 ] : . 3 :
conveyed all land to son Upton Zruve, with certain rights granted
to daughter Elizabeth iizv Lcotl.

p——




CrrR-4ay

A MYRTLE HILL  Description--cont. page 2

an early outbuilding to which a later addition was built to connect
it to the rear of the ell. CEvidence that this ell extension occurred
is found in the change in the roof framing over this area, and some
bead-edged siding in the attic at the spot where the criginal ell
ended. A stone outbuilding of one room with a narrow bared window
was built to serve as a one-cell jall.

The interior has a mixture of doorway moldings. The ornamental
trimwork and mantelpieces have a »rovincial character. The staircase
is located in the central hall and rizes in two directions from its
landing. The plaster walls have a curve at the top where they
gently slope in at the corners (which may be an indication of a

hewn flare in the post to strengthen its joint with the girt).

-

MYRTLE HILL Significance--cont.

Norman Bruce is an enlightening personality who characterizes the
wealthy rural landowner during the Revolutionary Period. His
versitility as a farmer, miller, soldicr, sheriff and judge reveals
the diverse interests and knowledre necessary for the colonial and
pioneer settlers. Towards the end of his life, however, the economic
conditions of the country caused financ:inl problems for Bruce. After
his death, Myrtle Hill was sold and converted to use as a tavern.
Later it became the home of the L.erhin - family. who developed the
community into a centralized millin:; Lown.

"Myrtle Hill," with it revresentative architectural form plus its
individual characteristics, present: an nistorical resource for
understanding the life and culture surrounding a citizen of the
Revolutionary Period, and the later development through industrialization
of a small rural neighborhood to a milling center which supported

the community into the 20th Century. |
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ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY.DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVLL i APPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES
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ORGANIZATION - DATE |
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Westminster itaryland 21157
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The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Aiticie 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 Supplement.
The Survey and Inventory are bein¢ preparcd for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights. =
RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust -
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